
 

Page 1 of 3 

 City of Gardner, Massachusetts 
Office of the City Council 

~~~~~~~ 
CALENDAR FOR THE MEETING 

of 
MONDAY, MAY 2, 2022 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBER 
7:30 P.M. 

 
 

ORDER OF BUSINESS  
 
 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. CALL OF THE ROLL OF COUNCILLORS 
 
III. OPENING PRAYER 
 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
V. ANNOUNCEMENT OF OPEN MEETING RECORDINGS 
 

Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session of a meeting, or may transmit the meeting through any medium, subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number, placement and operation of equipment used so as not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting.  Any person 
intending to make such recording shall notify the Chair forthwith.  All documents and exhibits used or referenced at the meeting must be submitted in 
duplicate to the City Clerk, as they become part of the Meeting Minutes. 

 
VI. READING OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING(S) 

• March 7, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes 
• March 21, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes 

  
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

10655 – A petition by National Grid and Verizon New England Inc., Matthews 
Street - to install 2 Jointly Owned Poles on Matthews Street beginning at 
a point approximately 3,700 feet in a south direction. Install 2 Poles 
underneath transmission crossing. (In the City Council and Referred to 
Public Service 4/19/2022; Public Hearing 5/2/2022) 

 
10656 – A petition by National Grid, Matthews Street – to install 5 Single Owned 

Poles on Matthews Street beginning at a point approximately 1400 feet 
west of the centerline of the intersection of Route 140 and continuing 
approximately 20 feet in a north direction. Install 5 poles to extend line 
for a new service. (In the City Council and Referred to Public Service 
4/19/2022; Public Hearing 5/2/2022) 

 
 
 

 

 



 

Page 2 of 3 

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR  
 
 APPOINTMENTS 
  

10664 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Robert Oliva to the 
position of City Engineer, for term expiring April 15, 2025. (Appointments 
Committee) 

 
10665 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Michael Zlotnik to the 

position of Bandstand Committee Member, for term expiring April 15, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee) 

 
10666 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Nevonya Smith to the 

position of Youth Commission Member, for term expiring April 13, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee) 

 
10667 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Paul Leone to the 

position of Council on Aging Member, for term expiring April 13, 2025. 
(Appointments Committee) 

 
COMMUNICATIONS 

 
10668 – A Measure Relative to a Disclosure by Municipal Employee of Financial 

Interest in a Municipal Contract as Required by G.L.c. 268A, §20(b). 
(Finance Committee) 

 
10669 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding the Completed FY2021 

Outside Audit Report. (Finance Committee) 
 
10670 – A Communication from the Mayor Regarding the use of ARPA Funds. 

(Finance Committee) 
  
ORDERS 
 
10671 – An Order Appropriating $11,700.00 from Free Cash to the Info Tech 

Department – Cyber Security Account. (Finance Committee) 
 
10672 – An Order Appropriating $335,000.00 from Free Cash to Snow and Ice 

Removal. (Finance Committee) 
 

10673 – An Order Appropriating $26,903.00 from Free Cash to the PARC Bailey 
Brook Project Match 1 – Account. (Finance Committee) 

 
10674 – An Order Appropriating $162,900.00 from Free Cash to the PARC Bailey 

Brook Project Match 2 – Account. (Finance Committee) 
 

 



 

Page 3 of 3 

IX. PETITIONS, APPLICATIONS, COMMUNICATIONS, ETC.  
 
 10675 – An Application by GameStop, Inc. #3725, for a License to deal in 

Second-hand Articles at 376 Timpany Blvd. (Public Safety) 
 
 10676 – An Application by The Salvation Army – Family Store & Donation 

Center, for a License to deal in Second-hand Articles at 8 Union Street. 
(Public Safety) 

 
 10677 – An Application by Gardner Coins & Cards, Inc., for a License to deal in 

Second-hand Articles at 18 Parker Street. (Public Safety) 
   

X.    REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES   
 
 APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE 
 

10631 – A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Casey Bashaw to the 
position of Alternate Plumbing & Gas Inspector, for term expiring March 9, 
2025. (In the City Council and Referred to Appointments Committee 
3/21/2022; More Time 4/19/2022) 

 
 PUBLIC SERVICE COMMITTEE 
 

10655 – A petition by National Grid and Verizon New England Inc., Matthews 
Street - to install 2 Jointly Owned Poles on Matthews Street beginning at 
a point approximately 3,700 feet in a south direction. Install 2 Poles 
underneath transmission crossing. (In the City Council and Referred to 
Public Service 4/19/2022; Public Hearing 5/2/2022) 

 
10656 – A petition by National Grid, Matthews Street – to install 5 Single Owned 

Poles on Matthews Street beginning at a point approximately 1400 feet 
west of the centerline of the intersection of Route 140 and continuing 
approximately 20 feet in a north direction. Install 5 poles to extend line 
for a new service. (In the City Council and Referred to Public Service 
4/19/2022; Public Hearing 5/2/2022) 

 
XI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
 
XII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
XIII. CLOSING PRAYER 
 
XIV. ADJOURNMENT 
  
 

Items listed on the Council Calendar are those reasonably anticipated by the Council President to be discussed at the meeting.  Not all items listed 
may in fact be discussed and other items not listed may also be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 7, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the Council Chambers, Room 219, City Hall, 
on Monday evening, March 7, 2022. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Eleven (11) Councillors were present 
including Councillor James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Judy Mack, 
George Tyros, and James Walsh.   
 

 

OPENING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the Opening Prayer. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 
 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

President Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording and Public 
Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session 
of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of equipment used so as 
not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending to make such 
recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or referenced at 
the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of the meeting 
minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 

 
READING & ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 

 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, 
it was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Kazinskas and Councillors James 
Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to waive the reading and 
accept the minutes as printed of the February 7, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes.  
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 7, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

 
REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
#10620 
Reporting for the Finance Committee, Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz informed the 
Council that the Committee unanimously recommended to approve the order. This order 
will be used to renovate the fields between the High School and Middles School as well as 
updates to the girls’ softball field and Stedman field. These fields are also used by the flag 
teams, marching band, summer recreational program and local sport groups. The goal is to 
accommodate all softball, baseball practices and games. 
 
On a motion made by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz and seconded by Councillor 
Ronald Cormier, it was voted on call of the roll, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth 
Kazinskas; Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James 
Walsh; that the following Order ought to pass: 
 

 AN ORDER APPROPRIATING FROM FREE CASH TO SCHOOL ATHLETIC 
FIELD IMPROVEMENTS ACCOUNT.  

 
  ORDERED: That there be and is hereby appropriated the sum of One 

Hundred Twenty-One Thousand Nine Hundred Five Dollars and No Cents 
($121,905.00) from Free Cash to the School Athletic Field Improvements 
Account. 

 
#10622 
Reporting for the Finance Committee, Councillor Ronald Cormier informed the Council that 
the Finance Committee were in favor of the ordinance to correct some parts of the 
ordinance. Department of Public Safety is now known as the Civilian Systems Manager and 
it was listed in the ordinance that they receive holiday pay, and they do not. The ordinance 
provides additional compensation to employees who are expected to work on holidays as part 
of their normal job performance. 
 
On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander 
Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; 
Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 7, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh; to 
send the following Ordinance to First Printing: 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, 
SECTION 44 OF CHAPTER 171, ENTITLED “COMPENSATION IN LIEU OF 
PAID HOLIDAYS” 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER 
THAT: 

 
SECTION 1: Section 44(A) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, 
entitled “Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Police Department,” be 
amended by deleting the words “Civilian Systems Manager,” from the 
provisions of this section. 

 
SECTION 2: Section 44(A) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, 
entitled “Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Police Department,” be 
amended by deleting the word “Captain” from the provisions of this section. 

 
SECTION 3: Section 44(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, 
entitled “Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Fire Department,” be 
amended by deleting the words “Fire Alarm Superintendent” from the 
provisions of this section. 

 
SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as 
required by law.  

 
REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES 

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
 
#10623 
Reporting for the Safety Committee Councillor Craig Cormier informed the Council that this 
ordinance amendment would remove two different chapters and combine them into one. 
The Building Commissioner Roland Jean, Board of Health Director Lauren Saunders and Fire 
Chief Greg Lagoy were in favor of the amendment. The ordinance had a few conflicting 
chapters. The new amendment would clarify any confusion, clarify what department is 
responsible for enforcement, and increase fines.  
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 7, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Councillor James Boone spoke in opposition. He questioned “director or his designee shall be 
the final binding on the parties.” He would like to know why one person gets to choose the 
refusal. 
 
Councillor George Tyros said when it comes to Public Service, the water bills, these matters 
that come before us have to do with public safety of the citizens. It comes down to the 
experts of the field, the Police Chief, Health Director, Building Commissioner, they know 
the laws and the safety standards that are needed to keep these buildings in order. He 
believes that the authority is rightly with the most capable hands of the city. 
 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, 
it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, George Tyros, and James Walsh; one (1) nay, Councillor James Boone; that the 
following Ordinance be sent to First Printing: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of The City 
of Gardner by Deleting Chapter 357, Entitled “Vacant and Abandoned Buildings,” and 
Chapter 493, Entitled “Nuisances,” and Adding a New Chapter 500 to be Entitled, “Blighted, 
Nuisance, Vacant, and Abandoned Properties,” Which Chapter Provides for Public Safety 
Measures for Blighted, Nuisance, Vacant, and Abandoned Properties, Prohibitions, and 
Penalties for Violation of the Chapter. 
 
#10624 
Reporting for the Safety Committee Councillor Craig Cormier informed the Council that this 
ordinance would codify an ordinance that the Governor put in place during the emergency 
measures from COVID-19. It has done well for the business during this time, and they would 
like to see it continue. 
 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, 
it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors James 
Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh; that the following 
Ordinance be sent to First Printing, An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner 
by adding a New Chapter 501 to be Entitled “Outdoor Restaurant Seating and Services,” 
Which Chapter Provides for Definition of Outdoor Dining Services, Licensing Procedures, 
and Hours of Operations. 
 
 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 7, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#10625 
Reporting for the Safety Committee Councillor Craig Cormier informed the Council that this 
ordinance amendment is mainly “housekeeping.” The ordinance has not been reviewed for 
quite some time and it is out of sync with state laws. The fines are below what the state law 
recommends as well as language used.  
 
Councillor James Boone questioned §312-4 (a), Disposition of unclaimed dogs, states that 
“Any dog which is impounded and is not redeemed by the owner within the ten-day period 
of the confinement shall be made available for adoption in accordance with procedures 
established by the Gardner Police Department and the National Animal Control 
Association.” §312-4 (b) states, “Any unclaimed dog which is in custody of the Police 
Department shall be disposed of in accordance with MGL c. 140, §151A when each of the 
following criteria has been met: (1) The dog that was detained for a period of seven days.” 
 Councillor Boone stated that he was confused does not agree with the language of the 
ordinance.  
 
Mayor Nicholson informed the Council that “We have to hold a dog for a minimum of seven 
days to make sure that a dog is claimed by an owner. The owner can retake the dog after 
seven days. If the dog is unclaimed after seven days, the City can put the dog up for adoption. 
The reasoning for the ten days is that the Police Chief and the Board of Health have the 
authority to euthanize an unclaimed dog after 10 days. It is something normally done. They 
try to wait for two weeks before a dog is put up for adoption. The 10 days gives the owner a 
chance to claim the dog before putting it up for adoption.” 
 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, 
it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh; one (1) nay, Councillor James Boone; 
that the following Ordinance be sent to First Printing, An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 312 
of the Code of the City of Gardner, Entitled “Animals.” 
 
#10626 
Reporting for the Safety Committee Councillor Craig Cormier informed the Council that this 
ordinance was originally put in place in the early 80s when arcades were becoming a rage. 
The city has never had a full-blown arcade and the ordinance has not been enforced.  
 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, 
it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors James 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 7, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh; that the following 
Ordinance be sent to First Printing, An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of 
Gardner by Deleting Chapter 318, Entitled Arcades. 
 

COUNCIL AS COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
 
#10602 
President Elizabeth Kazinskas announced that there was an informal meeting earlier in the 
evening regarding items #10602 and #10603 with a presentation from Mayor Nicholson and 
additional information from Fire Chief Greg Lagoy and Building Commissioner Roland Jean. 
On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Judy Mack, it 
was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors James 
Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh; that the following 
Ordinance be sent to First Printing: An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of 
Gardner, Section 8, Chapter 390, Entitled “Fire Department Fee Schedule.” 
 
#10603 
On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it 
was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors James 
Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh; that the following 
Ordinance be sent to First Printing: An Ordinance to Amend Sections of the Code of the City 
of Gardner, Chapter 390, Entitled “Fees.” 
 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in the Closing Prayer. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
On a motion by Councillor Nathan Boudreau and seconded by Councillor Craig Cormier, it 
was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James 
Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack, George Tyros, and James Walsh to adjourn at 7:57 p.m. 
 
Accepted by the City Council:   



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 21, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 1 of 9 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting of the City Council was held in the Council Chambers, Room 219, City Hall, 
on Monday evening, March 21, 2022. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the meeting to order at 7:30 o’clock p.m.  
 

CALL OF THE ROLL 
 

City Clerk Titi Siriphan called the Roll of Members. Ten (10) Councillors were present 
including Councillor James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, 
Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Elizabeth Kazinskas, Judy Mack, and 
James Walsh.  Councillor George Tyros was absent. 
 

 

OPENING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the Opening Prayer. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in reciting the “Pledge of Allegiance”. 
 

OPEN MEETING RECORDING & PUBLIC RECORDS ANNOUNCEMENT 
 

President Kazinskas announced to the assembly that the Open Meeting Recording and Public 
Records Announcement. Any person may make a video or audio recording of an open session 
of a meeting or may transmit the meeting through any medium subject to reasonable 
requirements of the chair as to the number placement and operation of equipment used so as 
not to interfere with the conduct of the meeting. Any person intending to make such 
recordings shall notify the Chair forthwith. All documents and exhibits used or referenced at 
the meeting must be submitted in duplicate to the chair as they become part of the meeting 
minutes pursuant to General Law Chapter 38 Section 20. 

 
READING & ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 

 

On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, 
it was voted on call of the roll, ten (10) yeas, President Kazinskas and Councillors James 
Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, and James Walsh to waive the reading and accept the minutes as 
printed of the February 22, 2022, Joint Convention of the City Council and School 
Committee Meeting Minutes. Councillor Judy Mack abstained. She was not present at that 
meeting. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 21, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 2 of 9 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
APPOINTMENTS 

 
#10631 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it was 
voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh refer the following Appointment to the Appointments 
Committee for further study and report: 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Casey Bashaw to the position of 
Alternate Plumbing & Gas Inspector, for term expiring March 9, 2025. 
 

#10632 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it was 
voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh refer the following Appointment to the Appointments 
Committee for further study and report: 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Philip Morrissey to the position 
of Airport Commission Member, for term expiring March 4, 2025.  
 

#10633 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor Craig Cormier, it 
was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh refer the following Appointment to the Appointments 
Committee for further study and report: 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of James Morrissey to the position 
of Airport Commission Member, for term expiring March 4, 2025. 
 

#10634 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor Craig Cormier, it 
was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh refer the following Appointment to the Appointments 
Committee for further study and report: 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of John Lavoie to the position of 
Airport Commission Member, for term expiring March 4, 2025. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 21, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 3 of 9 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#10635 
On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor Craig Cormier, it 
was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan 
Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, Dana 
Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh refer the following Appointment to the Appointments 
Committee for further study and report: 

A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Andre Guertin to the position of 
Airport Commission Member, for term expiring March 3, 2025. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION 

 
#10602 
On a motion made by Councillor James Walsh and seconded by Councillor Nathan 
Boudreau, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors 
James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack and James Walsh; that the following Ordinance be 
Passed and sent to Final Printing: 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 8 OF CHAPTER 390 OF THE CODE OF 
THE CITY OF GARDNER, ENTITLED FIRE DEPARTMENT FEE SCHEDULE 

 
In the City Council – February 7, 2022 
Ordered Printed – March 7, 2022 
First Printing – March 10, 2022 
Ordinance Passed – March 21, 2022 
Presented to the Mayor for Approval – March 22, 2022 
Michel J. Nicholson, Mayor 

 
A TRUE COPY, ATTEST: 
TITI SIRIPHAN, CITY CLERK 
March 25, 2022 

 
#10603 
On a motion made by Councillor James Walsh and seconded by Councillor Nathan 
Boudreau, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors 
James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, 
Karen Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack and James Walsh; that the following Ordinance be 
Passed and sent to Final Printing: 
 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 21, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 4 of 9 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 8 OF CHAPTER 390 OF THE CODE OF 
THE CITY OF GARDNER, ENTITLED FIRE DEPARTMENT FEE SCHEDULE 

 
In the City Council – February 7, 2022 
Ordered Printed – March 7, 2022 
First Printing – March 10, 2022 
Ordinance Passed – March 21, 2022 
Presented to the Mayor for Approval – March 22, 2022 
Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor 
 
A TRUE COPY, ATTEST: 
TITI SIRIPHAN, CITY CLERK 
March 25, 2022 
 

 

#10622 
On a motion made by Councillor James Walsh and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, it 
was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors James Boone, 
Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, 
Dana Heath, Judy Mack and James Walsh; that the following Ordinance be Passed and sent 
to Final Printing: 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, 
SECTION 44 OF CHAPTER 171, ENTITLED “COMPENSATION IN LIEU OF 
PAID HOLIDAYS” 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER 
THAT: 

 
SECTION 1: Section 44(A) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, 
entitled “Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Police Department,” be 
amended by deleting the words “Civilian Systems Manager,” from the 
provisions of this section. 

 
SECTION 2: Section 44(A) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, 
entitled “Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Police Department,” be 
amended by deleting the word “Captain” from the provisions of this section. 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 21, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 5 of 9 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

SECTION 3: Section 44(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, 
entitled “Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Fire Department,” be 
amended by deleting the words “Fire Alarm Superintendent” from the 
provisions of this section. 

 
SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as 
required by law.  
 
In the City Council – February 22, 2022 
Ordered Printed – March 7, 2022 
First Printing – March 10, 2022 
Ordinance Passed – March 21, 2022 
Presented to the Mayor for Approval – March 22, 2022 
Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor 
 
A TRUE COPY, ATTEST: 
TITI SIRIPHAN, CITY CLERK 
March 25, 2022 
 

#10623 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, 
it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors James 
Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack and James Walsh; that the following Ordinance be Passed 
and sent to Final Printing: 
 

An Ordinance to Amend the Code of The City of Gardner by Deleting Chapter 357, 
Entitled “Vacant and Abandoned Buildings,” and Chapter 493, Entitled “Nuisances,” 
and Adding a New Chapter 500 to be Entitled, “Blighted, Nuisance, Vacant, and 
Abandoned Properties,” Which Chapter Provides for Public Safety Measures for 
Blighted, Nuisance, Vacant, and Abandoned Properties, Prohibitions, and Penalties 
for Violation of the Chapter. 
 
In the City Council – February 22, 2022 
Ordered Printed – March 7, 2022 
First Printing – March 10, 2022 
Ordinance Passed – March 21, 2022 
Presented to the Mayor for Approval – March 22, 2022 
Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 21, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 6 of 9 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

A TRUE COPY, ATTEST: 
TITI SIRIPHAN, CITY CLERK 
March 25, 2022 
 

 

#10624 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, 
it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors James 
Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack and James Walsh; that the following Ordinance be Passed 
and sent to Final Printing: 
 

An Ordinance to Amend the Code of the City of Gardner by adding a New Chapter 
501 to be Entitled “Outdoor Restaurant Seating and Services,” Which Chapter 
Provides for Definition of Outdoor Dining Services, Licensing Procedures, and Hours 
of Operations. 
 
In the City Council – February 22, 2022 
Ordered Printed – March 7, 2022 
First Printing – March 10, 2022 
Ordinance Passed – March 21, 2022 
Presented to the Mayor for Approval – March 22, 2022 
Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor 
 
A TRUE COPY, ATTEST: 
TITI SIRIPHAN, CITY CLERK 
March 25, 2022 
 

#10625 
Councillor James Boone had a question regarding §312-4 Disposition of unclaimed dogs. It 
reads:  

A. Any dog which is impounded and is not redeemed by the owner withing the ten-day 
period of confinement shall be made available for adoption in accordance with 
procedures established by Gardner Police Department and National Animal Control 
Association. 

B. Any unclaimed dog which is in the custody of the Police Department shall be 
disposed in accordance with MGL c. 140, § 151A, when each of the following criteria 
has been met: 
(1) The dog was detained for a period of seven (7) days. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 21, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 7 of 9 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

(2) The description of the dog was published in the local paper at least three days 
before the scheduled date of the destruction. 

(3) The dog was made available for adoption in accordance with Subsection A. 
 
Councillor is confused with the language because it states that there is a ten-day period to 
adopt the dog, but in seven days, the dog can be disposed. 
 
Councillor Craig Cormier explained to Councillor Boone that a dog can be “disposed” after 
seven days only if the 3 criteria in sub section “B” are met. 
 
Mayor Nicholson clarified that the ten days was reduced in the general law statute to seven. 
Based off of the humane society's recommendations to the legislature, a dog can have some 
anxiety issues for being in a cage for too long. We are allowed to go up to the 10 days but 
may allow the dog to be adopted after seven days. It allows a three-day extra window for the 
owner to claim the dog. 
 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, 
it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors James 
Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack and James Walsh; that the following Ordinance be Passed 
and sent to Final Printing: 
 

An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 312 of the Code of the City of Gardner, Entitled 
“Animals.” 

 
In the City Council – February 22, 2022 
Ordered Printed – March 7, 2022 
First Printing – March 10, 2022 
Ordinance Passed – March 21, 2022 
Presented to the Mayor for Approval – March 22, 2022 
Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor 
 
A TRUE COPY, ATTEST: 
TITI SIRIPHAN, CITY CLERK 
March 25, 2022 
 
 
 

 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 21, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 8 of 9 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

#10626 
On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, 
it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors James 
Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen 
Hardern, Dana Heath, Judy Mack and James Walsh; that the following Ordinance be Passed 
and sent to Final Printing: 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER BY 
DELETING CHAPTER 318, ENTITLED ARCADES. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER THAT: 

 
SECTION 1: Chapter 318 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled Arcades, be 
deleted in its entirety.  
 
SECTION 2: This ordinance shall take effect upon passage by law.  
 
In the City Council – February 22, 2022 
Ordered Printed – March 7, 2022 
First Printing – March 10, 2022 
Ordinance Passed – March 21, 2022 
Presented to the Mayor for Approval – March 22, 2022 
Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor 
 
A TRUE COPY, ATTEST: 
TITI SIRIPHAN, CITY CLERK 
March 25, 2022 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

Councillor Dana Heath would like to thank the Mayor for the sale of the buildings 
downtown.  
 
Councillor James Boone would like to echo the comments of Councillor Heath. He is hopeful 
this will improve the downtown by getting responsible owners help make the city look good 
again. 
 
Councillor Nathan Boudreau was impressed with the Public Welfare Committee tour a few 
weeks ago at the Senior Center by Director Mike Ellis. He recommends everyone check out 
the Senior Center. 



 
REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 21, 2022 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Page 9 of 9 
 

 

CITY OF GARDNER     IN CITY COUNCIL 

CLOSING PRAYER 
 

President Kazinskas led the Council in the Closing Prayer. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

On a motion by Councillor Nathan Boudreau and seconded by Councillor Dana Heath, it was 
voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, 
Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hardern, 
Dana Heath, Judy Mack, and James Walsh to adjourn at 7:57 p.m. 
 
 

Accepted by the City Council:   



 
        

          CITY OF GARDNER 
          MASSACHUSETTS 01440-2630 

 
          OFFICE OF THE 

        CITY CLERK 
             Room 121, City Hall 
             Tel  (978) 630-4058 
             Fax (978) 630-2589 

 
                                                                                NOTICE TO ABUTTERS 
 

April 20, 2022 
 
TO ABUTTERS AND OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of M.G.L., c. 166, §22, you are hereby notified that a 
Public Hearing will be conducted on MONDAY, MAY 2, 2022 at 7:30 o'clock 
P.M. on the petition of Massachusetts Electric Company, d/b/a NATIONAL GRID 
and Verizon New England, Inc. for permission to locate poles, wires, and fixtures, 
including the necessary sustaining and protecting fixtures, under along and across 
the following public way: 
 

MATTHEWS STREET – A petition by National Grid and Verizon New 
England Inc., Matthews Street - to install 2 Jointly Owned Poles on Matthews 
Street beginning at a point approximately 3,700 feet in a south direction. 
Install 2 Poles underneath transmission crossing. 
 

A sketch of the proposed pole location is attached for your edification. 
 
 
      CITY COUNCIL OF GARDNER 

 
 
      By:  TITI SIRIPHAN 

City Clerk 
 
 

 

10655



10655



10655



10655



10655



10655



 
        

          CITY OF GARDNER 
          MASSACHUSETTS 01440-2630 

 
          OFFICE OF THE 

        CITY CLERK 
             Room 121, City Hall 
             Tel  (978) 630-4058 
             Fax (978) 630-2589 

 
                                                                                NOTICE TO ABUTTERS 
 

April 20, 2022 
 
TO ABUTTERS AND OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of M.G.L., c. 166, §22, you are hereby notified that a 
Public Hearing will be conducted on MONDAY, MAY 2, 2022 at 7:30 o'clock 
P.M. on the petition of Massachusetts Electric Company, d/b/a NATIONAL GRID 
and Verizon New England, Inc. for permission to locate poles, wires, and fixtures, 
including the necessary sustaining and protecting fixtures, under along and across 
the following public way: 
 

MATTHEWS STREET – A petition by National Grid, Matthews Street – to 
install 5 Single Owned Poles on Matthews Street beginning at a point 
approximately 1400 feet west of the centerline of the intersection of Route 
140 and continuing approximately 20 feet in a north direction. Install 5 poles 
to extend line for a new service. 
 

A sketch of the proposed pole location is attached for your edification. 
 
 
      CITY COUNCIL OF GARDNER 

 
 
      By:  TITI SIRIPHAN 

City Clerk 
 
 

 

10656



10656



10656



10656



10656



10656



10664



10665



10666



10667



10668



10668



10668



10668



10668



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10669



10670



10670



10670



10670



10670



10671



10671



10671



10671



10671



10671



10671



10672



10672



10672



10672



10672



10673



10673



10673



10673



10673



10674



10674



10675



10675



10676



10676



10677



10677



10631


	3-7-2022 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	#10620
	Reporting for the Finance Committee, Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz informed the Council that the Committee unanimously recommended to approve the order. This order will be used to renovate the fields between the High School and Middles School as w...
	#10622
	Reporting for the Finance Committee, Councillor Ronald Cormier informed the Council that the Finance Committee were in favor of the ordinance to correct some parts of the ordinance. Department of Public Safety is now known as the Civilian Systems Mana...
	On a motion made by Councillor Ronald Cormier and seconded by Councillor Aleksander Dernalowicz, it was voted viva voce, eleven (11) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksand...
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, SECTION 44 OF CHAPTER 171, ENTITLED “COMPENSATION IN LIEU OF PAID HOLIDAYS”
	BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER THAT:
	SECTION 1: Section 44(A) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Police Department,” be amended by deleting the words “Civilian Systems Manager,” from the provisions of this section.
	SECTION 2: Section 44(A) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Police Department,” be amended by deleting the word “Captain” from the provisions of this section.
	SECTION 3: Section 44(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Fire Department,” be amended by deleting the words “Fire Alarm Superintendent” from the provisions of this section.
	SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as required by law.
	On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hard...
	COUNCIL AS COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
	#10603

	3-21-2022 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR
	APPOINTMENTS
	#10631
	On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor James Walsh, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Hard...
	A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Casey Bashaw to the position of Alternate Plumbing & Gas Inspector, for term expiring March 9, 2025.
	#10632
	A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Philip Morrissey to the position of Airport Commission Member, for term expiring March 4, 2025.
	#10633
	On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor Craig Cormier, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Ha...
	A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of James Morrissey to the position of Airport Commission Member, for term expiring March 4, 2025.
	A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of John Lavoie to the position of Airport Commission Member, for term expiring March 4, 2025.
	#10635
	On a motion made by Councillor Judy Mack and seconded by Councillor Craig Cormier, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Kazinskas and Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowicz, Karen Ha...
	A Measure Confirming the Mayor’s Appointment of Andre Guertin to the position of Airport Commission Member, for term expiring March 3, 2025.
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS AND MATTERS FOR RECONSIDERATION
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 8 OF CHAPTER 390 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, ENTITLED FIRE DEPARTMENT FEE SCHEDULE
	In the City Council – February 7, 2022
	Ordered Printed – March 7, 2022
	First Printing – March 10, 2022
	Ordinance Passed – March 21, 2022
	Presented to the Mayor for Approval – March 22, 2022
	Michel J. Nicholson, Mayor
	A TRUE COPY, ATTEST:
	TITI SIRIPHAN, CITY CLERK
	March 25, 2022
	#10603
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 8 OF CHAPTER 390 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, ENTITLED FIRE DEPARTMENT FEE SCHEDULE
	In the City Council – February 7, 2022
	Ordered Printed – March 7, 2022
	First Printing – March 10, 2022
	Ordinance Passed – March 21, 2022
	Presented to the Mayor for Approval – March 22, 2022
	Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor
	A TRUE COPY, ATTEST:
	TITI SIRIPHAN, CITY CLERK
	March 25, 2022
	#10622
	AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE CITY OF GARDNER, SECTION 44 OF CHAPTER 171, ENTITLED “COMPENSATION IN LIEU OF PAID HOLIDAYS”
	BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARDNER THAT:
	SECTION 1: Section 44(A) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Police Department,” be amended by deleting the words “Civilian Systems Manager,” from the provisions of this section.
	SECTION 2: Section 44(A) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Police Department,” be amended by deleting the word “Captain” from the provisions of this section.
	SECTION 3: Section 44(B) of Chapter 171 of the Code of the City of Gardner, entitled “Compensation in Lieu of Paid Holidays: Fire Department,” be amended by deleting the words “Fire Alarm Superintendent” from the provisions of this section.
	SECTION 4: This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication as required by law.
	In the City Council – February 22, 2022
	Ordered Printed – March 7, 2022
	First Printing – March 10, 2022
	Ordinance Passed – March 21, 2022
	Presented to the Mayor for Approval – March 22, 2022
	Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor
	A TRUE COPY, ATTEST:
	TITI SIRIPHAN, CITY CLERK
	March 25, 2022
	On a motion made by Councillor Craig Cormier and seconded by Councillor Karen Hardern, it was voted viva voce, ten (10) yeas, President Elizabeth Kazinskas; Councillors James Boone, Nathan Boudreau, Craig Cormier, Ronald Cormier, Aleksander Dernalowic...
	An Ordinance to Amend the Code of The City of Gardner by Deleting Chapter 357, Entitled “Vacant and Abandoned Buildings,” and Chapter 493, Entitled “Nuisances,” and Adding a New Chapter 500 to be Entitled, “Blighted, Nuisance, Vacant, and Abandoned Pr...
	In the City Council – February 22, 2022
	Ordered Printed – March 7, 2022
	First Printing – March 10, 2022
	Ordinance Passed – March 21, 2022
	Presented to the Mayor for Approval – March 22, 2022
	Michael J. Nicholson, Mayor
	A TRUE COPY, ATTEST:
	TITI SIRIPHAN, CITY CLERK
	March 25, 2022




